
United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
FORTY·SECOND SESSION

Official Records""

8UM~ARY RECORD OF TFE 26th MEETING

SIXTH COMMITTEE
26th meeting

held on
Tuesday, 20 OCtober 1987

at 10 a.m.
Ne,,' York

Chairman: Mr. AZZAFOUK (Ijrya~ ~rar Jamaririya)

CO~TS

AGFNDJl. I"'W ,:' -': RFPOP'T' OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTFE ON "'HE CHAF'T'EF OF 'T'FE UNI'1"FD
NATIONS AND ON TFE STRENGTFENING OF 'rFE ROLE OF THE ORGANIZATION (continuE>t'l)

AGFNDA !'T'EM 12Q: PEACEFUl· SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES BE~'EEN STATES (cof'ttinueo)

'Thi, mow,s subJt'C1 l() c=t1()n COfftttlOM ~hould be >en! Wldor the ~ig""lUre of • member of the d.l.­
satlon concerned WIln.:r: o.."t ~¥",.k of r!u £fau cj p~lJ(:anOft 10 the Chief of the Orn'tAl Records. Edmng. Section,
room DC:'·"SO. ~ Umted N.ltlOni Piua. and lncorporatt"d in I ropy of UM:: ~o.rrl.

Distr. GENERAL
A/C.6/42/SR.26
30 OCtober 1987
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL: SPANISH

87-56323 71645 (E)
/ ...



f./e. 6/41./~>H. 7(.

E:ngllBh
I'lIg(' ;>

AGgNDA [1'EM D7: RgFORT nE' TIfF: SPETTI\L COMMI'1'TEF. ON THE CIlAR1'F.R (W THE llNITE[)
NATIONS AND ON THE S1'RF.NG'1'IIENTNG OF '1'1fE HOLF. OF 'I'm: m GI\NI?:I\TlON (continuen)
(A/42/11)

AGI':NDI\ l1'EM 1 ;>CJ: PEACEIo'llI. SETTLf·:MF.NT OF DTSPI.JTI':S RF.TWIo~r·;N STATES :conti nue~) (npf'
A/C.6/42/L.l )

1. Mf. AWI\WDEH (,Jornan) sain t:hat the Spedi'll CommitteE' on the Charter of the
UnitE'd NationR and (m the Strenqtheninq of the Role of th(' Orgftnization han man£'
consic'lerabk progrens at itfl most recent ses,don, particularly with regilrd to the
q""Rtion 01 ::he maintenancf' of internationill peace and security. That question Wf1n
of such Lnportance that the success of the United Nations could he measured in
t<Jrms of the progress it mace in that sphere. The existence of good relation']
hetween Sl~tes was predicatec'l on compliance with international law, which
presupposed that States prllct bed I'U tual reflpect and re [ra ined t rom impos ing the i r
will on othf~r States. The implementation of thooe principles would enahle thf'
United l",tionfl effectively 1:0 perform its function in maintaininq international
peace and security.

'I.. His delegation considered that the draft neclaration contained in document
A/AC.IR2/L.3R/Rev.3 was a very serious contrihution towards that end, flince it
referred in part.icular to thf! role of the Security Counci], to which the Chilrter
entrusted primary responsibility for the maintenance of international pedce anc'l
security. However, there were some useful ideas in c'locument A/A,.182/L.48, too,
nince success in that area ohviously depended on the commi tment of St:ates to
respect the principles of the Charter. He therefore urged that efforts be man" to
reconcile the two documents. Document A/AC.182/L.48 contained provisions which
coulc'l he ir.corporated in document A/AC.182/L. 38/Rev. 3, which was further along in
the draftinq process. Tt was to be hoped th"at at its next se!1sion the Special
Committee would he able to adopt the draft c'leclaration. Primary responsibil ity for
the maintenance of international peace and security rested with the permanent
members of the Security Council, and the Secrptary-Gencral had a pivotal role to
play in that area as well.

3. His delegation endorsed the prop.")sal put forward by China (A/AC.IR2/L.S4),
which was reproduced in paragraph 102 of the r"port of the Special Committpp
(A/42/33) and had met with app[oval in llle Commit! ~P.

4. 1'urnIng to the question of the resort to <1 commisf:ion of good offices,
mediation or conciliation within the llnited Nations, he pointed out that a qreat
many amendmentn had heen Incol porated in 'York in::! paper A/AC.182/r•. S2/Rev.l in ordpr
to take into ae. ount thl' observation" and suqqestionfl made hy var ious dl'l eqat ions.
Hin deleqation slItJported the YJew text, which ",'an an improvement on thIC' previouS
version of L,t' document. However, a nUlI'her of provisions required further fltuciy
and refinement, inclun!.ng those on th<! composition of the commission, the procecurp
for appoi nt i ng it!. memher s, Hw li nk hetween th f' commifw ion anci th e Un i tIC'd Na tionfl

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Page]

(Mr. Awaw~eh1 Jordan)

system, and financial arrangements. E8tab1is~ ,t of a commission muat always be
alXepted by all parties to a conflict and mus, "an optional measure available to
St&tes, without prejudice to their right to select any other procedure for the
peaceful settlement of disputeft. It must be borne in mind that in most conflicts
there were lon lICJgressor antj an inj ured party, an, that the aggressor was obligated
und0r international law to make good the wrong committed and to restore the right
violated before entering into negotiations aimed at bringing about the peaceful
settlement of the dispute.

5. On the subject ot the rationalization oC existing procedures of the United
Nation~, his delegation conside~ed that the effectiveness of the United Nations
depended entirely on the effectiveness of its procedures. The co-sponsors of
document A/AC.182/L.43/Rev.l had submitted amendments in response to the comments
mad~ by vario~l delegations. The issue was of such importance that steps to
rationalize procedures should be extended to United Nations organ8 other than the
General Assembly. The r.canmendation that the General Assembly should adopt its
resolutions and decisions by consenSU8 would not help to rationalize procedures.
On the contrary, it would weaken the General Assembly and lead to stalemate, since
any country coIJ1d use the require:nent of consensus to block adoption of any
decision or resolution, and that would be tantamount to the exercise of a veto
power.

6. Laatly, his delegation found that the Special Committee had made appropriate
use of the time made available to it and had made satisfactory progress at its most
recent session, which had been characterized by a spirit of understanding,
co-operation and flexibility. Thanks to the consultations on procedural iS8ues
held before the session of the Special Committee, it had been possible to make
optimum use of the time available. It was to be hoped that that example would be
followed by the Special Committee at future sessions and by other organs.

7. Mr. STEPANOV (Ukraini~n Soviet Socialist Repuhlic) said that, in the current
transitional period in world affairs, the role played by the United Nations in
strengthefling international peace and co-operation was apparent. History had
ordained that the united Nations shoYld become the centre for harmonizing the
actions of nations aimed at maintaining international pea~e and security and
solving other important problems facing mankind. The Charter was the most
important standard-setting document of the contempora~v age. Since its adoption,
the Charter had been tried and tested, and had become tne corner-econe of the
international legal order. At the same time, it charted a course for the
achi~vement of a genuinely democratic, non-violent and demilitarized world through
concerted efforts on the part of the international community. In the nuclear ~nd

space age, it was the only reason~bl~ aiternative that mank\nd had. The universal
value of the Charter also stemmed from the fact that it constituted a sound basis
for the estabUshment of a system of international security that was universal in
tts scope. TO achieve that objective there was a need to give tangible form to the
new politi,::al thinking by making full use of the Organbation's potentilll. As
indicated in the article by Mr. Mikhall Gorbach9v entitled "Reality and safeguards
for a secure world" (annex to document A/42/574), such a system would be effective

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
EngHsh
p~ge 4

(Mr. Stepanav, Ukrainian SSR)

only if the United Nations, the Security Council and other international organs and
machinery functioned effectively. That article, inwpir'ad by a profound respect for
the lofty principles of the united Nations and itq Cha~ter, contained a set of
wide-ranging proposals to enhance the authority and effectiveness of the
Organization.

8. His country, which had taken part in the drafting of the Charter, had always
been in favour of strengthening the positive role of the United Nations in world
events. Its dedication to the united Nation~ had ~en reconfirmed on the recent
visit to the Uk Eainian SSR by tl,t't Secretary-General. His delegation believed that
the adoption of effective measures to strengthen the role of the Organization
depenned on the political will of Member States and their determination to
strengthen the Charter and make joint, resolute efforts to achieve the goals of
peace enehrJned in it. He not.d with satiafaction that at the latest session of
the Special Committe~, considerable att~ntion had been paid to the subject of
international peace and security. Consideration of that iS8ue must be
comprehensive and aimed at arriving at specific conclusions and recommendatior.s the
adoption of Which would enhance the offectiveneas of the United Nations. The
working paper submitted by Czechoslovakia', German Democratic Republic and Poland
(A/AC.182/L.48) contained many pr"ctical ideas about, inter alia, the arms race and
disarmament, world economic security and co-operation in the cultural and
humanitarian spheres. The Special Committee's report showed that considerable
progress had been made, on the basis of working paper A/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3, on the
Draft Declaration on the prevention and removal by the United Nations of disputes,
situations which may lead to international friction or give rise to a dispute and
matters which may threaten the maintenance of peace and security. The bases had
been laid for the possible completion of that Draft Declaration at the Special
Committee's next session.

9. His delegation viewed positively the work done by the special Committee on the
question of peacefUl settlement of disputes between States and believed that it was
essential that all the peaceful maans envisaged in the Charter for the settlement
of disputes ~ widely Ilsed. The ideas contained in the working paper submitted by
Romania (A/AC.l82/L.52/Rev.1) were interesting. Efforts must continue to be made
to identify po~sibilities of reaching agreement on specific aspects of that
proposal. It was also useful to prepare a handbook on the peaceful settlement of
disputes between States and his delegation welcomed the indication by the
Secretariat that it would soon be submi tUng a number of secUonl'l ('f the handbook
to the Consultative Group.

10. Turning to the rationalization of existing procedures of the United Nations,
his delegation shared the vi~w of many others as to the importance of that question
and the need to continue the work of preparing recommendations in that arsa. The
various proposals aimed, !nter alia, at ~nsuring wider use of United Nations
organs, promoting use of the consonSUB method, increasing the political weight of
resolutions and securing the implementation of decisions of the International Court
of Justice must continue to be considered in a constructive spirit. That work must

/ ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 26
Er.-}li sh
Page 5

(Mr. SteEftnov, Ukrainian SSR)

be almed .It finding a realistic means of enhancing the effectiveness of the united
Nations and its role in establishing lasting guarantees of peace and in solving
other contemporary world problems.

11. Mr. GOROG (Hur.gary) said that, from th~ out~et, his del~gation had attached
great importance to the work of the Special Commit~ee and remained committed to
contributing its share so that tdngible results could be achieved. As he had
~tated on other occasions, the proposals to be elaborated must be aimed solely at
strengthening the role of the Organization and in no way allow an overly extensive
interpret~tion of the Charter or up~et the fine b~lance of powers allocated to the
main organs.

12. His 'legation joined with those delegations which attached great importance
to the preparation of the handbook on the peaceful settlement of disputes between
States, which would be a technical contribution to enhencement of the principle of
peaceful settlement of disputes. It hoped that that complex and demanding task
would proceed on a priority basis and that even more progress would be reported at
the next session.

13. Turning to the proposal contained in the working paper on r 'sort to a
commission of good offices, mediation or conciliation within the united Nations,
submitted to the Special Committee by Romania in a revised version
(A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.l), his delegation maintained its serious reservations and
therefore the negative position it had taken earlier on the propost.lL The proposed
commissiu~ was a new organ and not merely a procedure and was inconsistent with the
Charter, particularly with regard to the functions of the General A~sembly, the
Security COuncil and the Secretary-General. His delegation contlnll"!:d to believe
that the main obstacle to the peacefUl settlement of disputes lay in the lack of
the necessary political will and not of an appropriate mechanism. He shared the
observations reflected in paragraph 17 of the Special Committee's report (A/42/33),
raising questions about the actual link between the proposed commission and the
United Nations system, the authority responsible for the designat!on of member.s of
the commission and the kind of financing intended for it.

14. With regard to the rationalization of existing procedures of the United
Nations, his delegation shared the view that that task should be accomplished in
strict observance of the Charter and fully in keeping with t~~ interests of Member
States. It hoped that the revised working paper (A/AC.1 R2/L.43/Rev.l) would be
able to serve as a basis for reaching agreement at the next sesoion of the Special
Committee.

15. Turning to the question of the maintenance of international peace and
security, he noted with satisfaction that the Special Committee, having
provisionally accepted the major part of working paper ~/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3, had
made considera' le progress towards finalizing its mandace. It was also a promising
sign that the views expressed by several delegations reflected pnints of
convergence betw~en that working paper and working paper A/AC.182/L.48. His
delegation believed that the time was now cipe for establishing a compromise

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Page 6

(Mr. Gorog, Hungary)

document on the question, based on the two working papers mentioned. The
favourable result. achj~ved with rer 'd to enhancing the effectiveness of the
principle of non-use 01 force in inteLnational relations .erved aa an example of a
new readiness for co-operation which might be extended to other fields. The
greatly improved co-operation among members of the Security Council, particularly
ita permanent members, wa~ another source of inspiration. His delegation was
firmly convinced that the Special Committee would soon be able to produce results
satisfactory to all delegations and stoOd ready to assist the Committee in pursuing
that effort.

,
16. Mr. DJORDJEVIC (Yugoslavia) said that the recently concluded g~neral debate in
the Gen 'rsl Assembly gave c~use to believe that the process of dialu9ue and
negotiation and the search for solution. to the deteriorating international
situation had begun. His delegation perceived greater possibilities for United
Nations organs to be used more effectively, in fulfilling their responsibilities
under the Charter.

17. On the subj~ct of the maintenance of international ,.ace and security, the
Special Committee, after considering for a number of years the working papers
prepared by Belgium, the Federal Republic of Germany, Italy, Japan, New Zealand and
Spain (A~C.182/L.38/Rev.3) and ?y Czechoslovakia, the Ger~n Democratic Republic
and Poland (A/AC.182/L.48) had during its 1937 session worked out the fr3mework for
a future consensus on the joint document concernirg the preventive role of United
Nations organs in relation to the maintenanoe of internationaJ peace and security.
It was clear that the future document, in addition to referring to that p~eventiv~

role, would have to contain provisions on the conduct of Stat.s. ~egrettably, in
spite of the efforts of a majority of the delegations it had not been possible to
reach agreement or to adopt a joint working paper. He hoped that the doc~ment

would be completed at the next sessior of the special Committee.

18. It was important that the work on the dr~ft handbook on the peaceful
settlement of disputes between States should be completed soon. The consideration
of Romania's proposal concerning resort to a commission of good offices, ~~~iation

or conciliation within the United Nations had entered a new phase and it was now
possible to foresee its completion. He hoped that on the basis of the progres~

already made the work would be completed very soon.

19. The Special Committee should continue to conaidel the proposals already
submitted concerning the rationalization of procedures, taking into account all
that had already been achieved in that area in other bOdies, 80 as to avoid
duplication of work and to make a genuine contribution.

20. AB a member of the Special Committee, Yu~oslavia had supported all its
activities, particularly those concerning the maintena~e of international peac~

and security. Th~ work on strengthening the role of tho United Nations W~8 a
process which called for great patience and responsibility, as well as the joint
efforts of all countries, particularly the p4rmanent members of the Secu.ity
Council. The contribution of the Special Committee was to be seen ~ot only in

/ ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 26
English
Page 7

(Mc. Djordjevic, Yugoslavia)

terms of the outcOl1le of its work but also in the influence that the ideas and
pro(lvsal orlginally discussed in the Committee had in the activities of the main
United Nations organs and their subsidiary bodies.

21. More than ever before, the international community needed a s(:roog and
efficient ~ited Nations, and to that end h:s delegation was prepared to
participate in consultations on all the issues important for the futu-~ wo~k of the
special Committee.

22. Mr. DA COSTA (Angola) said it was the lack of political will rather than the
nearth of procedureS which was responsible for non-resolution of conflicts by
peaceful mear.-. The qupstion of rationalization of existing procedures of the
United Nations had been dealt with by various forums of the United Nations as well
uS other bodies. After more than 40 years of existence, the Unite~ Nations
rem~ined an indispensable instrument for the promotion and maintenance of
international peace and security. The str~ngthening of its role should become an
integr&l part of the process of establishing a comprehensive system of
international security.

23. In the message he had addressed to the Secretary-C~neral of the United Nations
on 11 January 1986, the Secretary-General of the Central Commtttee of the Communist
~a~ty of the Soviet Union had advocated the strengthening of the role of the United
Nations, wider utilization of the means of peaceful settlement of disputes provided
for in the Charter, fuller use of the capabilities of thf' Security Co·me! and the
(~neral ~ssembly and resort to the mediating efforts of the Secretary-Gereral. The
United Nations should play a more active role in strengthening detente, curbing the
arms race and creating a climate of security and co-operation, and should ensure
the participa~ion of all States in the solution of international problems in
accordance with the principle of unive(sality ~[ the Unit~d Nations.

24. The People's Republic of Angola had committed itself to the Declaration ""
Principles of International Law concerning Friendly Relations and Co-operation
among Slates in accordance with the United Nations Charter, the Manila Declaration
on the Peaceful Settlement of International Disputes and the :~litical Declaration
of the Eighth Conference of Heads of State or Government of NOI~-Al igned Countries
held in September 1986.

25. In flagrant violation of the principles of international law and the
p(ovisions of the United Nations Charter, the racist and fascist minority regime of
South Africa continued it~ acts of aggression and subversion against the peoples of
the independent States of southern Africa, namely Angola, Botswana, Unsotho,
Mozambique, Zambia and Zimbabwe, and continued to occupy a part of Angola's
territory in violation of its national sovereignty, independence and territorial
il.tegr ity. Certain Western countries and Israel continued to collaborate with the
minority racist regime of South Africa in the military and nuclear fields and some
of those countries had by the use of the veto consistently frustrated every effort
in the Security Council to deal with the question of the racist regime of South

/ ...



AlC. 6/42/SR. 26
English
Page 8

(Mr. Da Costa, Angola)

Africa. Over the years Angola had presented several realistic proposals which, had
they been accepted, would have brought peace to the peoples of southern Afri=a long
1190.

26. His delegation had met again recently with the United States delegation and
had reaffirmed its latest proposal which, as the President of Angola,
Mr. Jose Eduardo dos Santos had said, far from meaning a retreat from its position
or a way of balkanizing the country, expressed the true aspiration of ilo people
for a peace without concessions. The only way to establish peace in southern
Africa, and in the southern part of Angola in particular, .was through the
implementation of Security Council resolution 435 (1978) on Namibian indppendence.
Unfortunately, it seemed that the minority racist regime of South Africa was
stronger than the United Nations.

27. Mr. BOUABID (Tunisia) thanked the Under-Secretary-Gen~ral3nd Legal Counsel
tor the unofficial consultations held before the Speci. t Committee's session, in
accordance with a proposal made by the Tunisian delegat_on during the forty-first
session of the General Assembly, as reflected in General Assembly resolution
41/83. The purpOF,e of the consultations had been to settle questions concerning
the organization of work, particularly the compo ltion of the Special Committee's
bureau, so that the Committee could devote all its time to the consideration of
SUbstantive questions. The consultations had been very useful, as the Chairman of
the Committee had noted in his introductory statement. 'rhe co-sponsors of draft
resolution A/AC.182/L.43/Rev.2 on rationalization of the existing procedures of the
United Nations had also incorporated the idea in paragraph 10 of the draft.

28. The idea should be applied in future sessions and should be reflected in th~

resolutiona the Committee had recommended to the General Assembly for approval,
particularly the resolution referring lo the report of the Ad Hoc Committee on the
Drafting of an International Convention Agaipst the Recruitment, Use, Financing and
Training of Mercenaries, and the report of the Special Committee on the Charter.

29. The Special Co~~ittee's 1987 session had been characterized by the high
quality of its wor~ and the lack of results. His deleqation had already expressed
its poRition in the Committee on the peaceful settlement of international disputes
and the maintenance of international peace and security, hut wished to make some
comments concerning the future work of the Special Committee.

30. With regard lo the question of the peaceful settlement of disputes between
Stat~s and in particular the work on the preparatior. of a draft handbook
recommended to the Secretariat, his delegation had take~ note of the contents of
paragraph 6 of the Secretary-General's report (A/AC.182/L.51), according to which
the ~ections concerning inquiry, mediation and conciliation would be Bubmitted to
the Consultative Group before the end of 1987. His delegation would take part in
the next meeting and hoped that, in spite of the Secretariat's limited resources,
it would give the work ~he priority needed to com~lete it as soon as possible.

I ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 26
English
Page 9

(Mr. Bou~bid, Tunisia)

31. There was an important suggestion put forward in paragraph 13 of the Special
Committee's report (A/42/33). At the Committ.ee'. next meeting, the Secretariat was
invited to submit revised portions of the h&ndbook that had already been review,d
in April 1986.

32. The proposal contained in the working paper on resort to a commi,sion o~ good
offices, meniation or conciliation within the United Nations had been discussed in
detail. As a resul~, the sponsor had been able to put forward a revised version.
Oo~siderable wo"k had been done and many improvements had bedn introduced. There
were still so~e problems concerning the modalities for setting up the new
structure. The difficulties mentioned in paragraph l~ of the Special Committee's
report were real but not insuperable. It was therefore to be hoped that the
Speci",l Committee wOI,ld complete its consideration of the Romanian proposal at its
next session. The results achieved should be submitted to the General Assembly.

33. The same conclusions applied to the work done by the Special Committee since
1984 with regard to the document submitted by Belgium, the Federal Republic of
Germany, Italy, Jr pen, New zealand and Spein (A/AC.182/L. 38/Rev. 3). It concerned
the preventive action that the United Nations should take in the field of
peacekeeping and international security. At the last session, the Working Group
provisionally adopted ~ large number of paragraphs of the future document. He
hoped that at its next session the CommIttee would complete its work on that
question on the basis of a document consolidating working paper A/AC.182/L.36/Rev.3
with the proposals appearing in paragraphs 46-102 of the Special Committee's
r~port. The Special Committee should give the proper priority to the question of
peacekeeping and international security in all their aspects in order to strengthen
the role of the United Nations and especially of the Security Council.

34. Mr. ALl (Democratic Yemen) said that, although his country was not a member of
the Special Committee, it had taken part in its work as an observer and now wished
to make a few cOlllllents on the COllluittee's report iA/42/33). In the first place,
with respect to the peaceful settlement of disputes between States, he stressed
that one of the most important principles of the United Nations, embodied in
Article 2, paragraph 3, of the Charter ~~s the undertaking by States to settlo
their international disputes by peaceful means. That text prohibitbd non-peaceful
means of resolving conflicts, including the so-called right or reprisal, th\t right
of blockade and so on, which required the use of military force. Article 33,
paragraph 1, defined the peaceful means of settling disputes such as neantiation,
mediation, conciliacion and arbitration. In the case of f&ilure of those methods,
paragraph 2 of the same article entrusted to the Security Couneil the
responsibility for calling IJpon the parties to settle their dispute. In
Chapter VIII of the Charter, the Security Council was authorized to adopt
collective measures to prevent or halt aggression. However, in practice the very
opposite occurred. Unf0rtunately, coday, many conflicts remained unsolved because,
on t'.•e one hand, the parties failed to observe that principle arid, on the other
h5nd, the Security Council failed to exercise the powers entrusted to it under the
Charter.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Page 10

(Mr. Ali, Democratic Yemen)

35. D,~mocLatic Ye.nen welcomed the revised Romanian proposal (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.ll,
which took into ~~count the comments o~ delegations and would help in the peaceful
settlement 0f disputes between States. His country al_o attached great importance
to the draft h~~rl~~ 0~ the peaceful settlement of disputes between States
prepared by the Secretar;:.tt. In his opinion, the Charter alrelldy described the
machinery necessary to tackle that problem, either throl'gh the 5ecurity Council,
the General As~embly or the initiatives of the Secretary-tieneral. Hence, the
important task now was not to put forward new recommendations but to ensure that
Stale~ showed th~ necessary political will and acted in accordance with the
unde(takings they had made.

36. The question of the rationalization of the existing procedures deserved
particular attention since it could have a positive effect on the work of the
Organization. However, the rationalization of procedures should not be restricted
to a singl~ one of the many United Nations organs. Nor should it be approacheo
solely from the. viewpoint of possible poJitical advances, since that might
constitute a 'Jiolation of the p-:l !'.ciples of the Olarter and of equality between
M~mber States, or of the democratic operation of the Organization. With regarn to
paragraph 1 of the wc>rki.lg paper on the rationalization of procedures
(A/AC.182 'L.43/Rev.2), Democratic Yemen considered t~at consensus was an objective
to be sought in all cases. However it should not be allowed to constitute a
virtual powe- of veto in the hands of a fe~ countries. A minority which had such
veto power might ~~ralyse the majority and ~~event ~t from adopting decision~. In
his view, that document required .nore careful e~amination in order to bring it into
line with the principles e~tabliphed in the Ch]rter.

37. The principle of peace-k~eping and international securitj, as defined in the
Charter, should be strer.gthened in view 01' the constant use of force or threat of
the use of force, the many centres of tension existing in the world, the arms race
and the rejection of United Nations resolutiqns by tl.e racist and colonialist
Powers. All tho'i1e phenomena constituted a thCE'at to peace and international
security. The draft Declaration on the prevention and removal by tht> united
Kations of disputes, situations which might ledd to international friction or give
rise to ~ dispute, and matter& which might th~~aten the maintenance of peace and
security (A/AC., "l2/L. 38/Rev. 3) was a positive st.~p ':orward. However, before such a
Declaration was adopted, it must be determined '.Ihether all the parties were ready
to respect and apply the decisions of the United Nations.

38. His delegation supported the proposal put forward by the delegation of China
(A/AC.182/L.54) appearing in paragraph 102 of the speclal committee's report
(A/42!33). ~at proposal should be borne in mind when the Declaration was drafted
i" its final form. His delegation also welcomed the constructive proposal put
forward by the SOJiet Union with a view to strengthening peace Hnd international
secur-: ty ard improving international relations.

39. Finally, his delegation considered that the special committe~'s mandate should
be extended.



A/C.6/42/SR.26
Engl i ,..'1

Page 11

40. Mr. KOZUBEK (Czechoslovakia) attached great importance to efforts aimed at the
strengthening of the United Nations. Solutions to the continuing problems of the
present world and also of new problems occuring at the present time must be sought
on the basis of the Charter and in the framework of the United Nations. Those
requirements were fully met by the initiative of the soci1list States aimed at the
establist'1Ient of a romp...:lensive system of international peace and oecurity. H:I s
delegation considered that in the conditions of the nuclear and space era when th
future prospects of all nations were mutually linked, multilateralism must play an
even more important role than it had so far. Czechoslovakia's main expectations
were based on the United Nations and it helieved that the Special Committee could
play ~~ important role in finding ways and means of releasing the still blocked
potential of action by the United Nations.

41. His delegation nott:d with satisfaction that a constructive approach had
prevailed in the Special Committee during the consideration ( F the item on the
maintenance of international peace and security. 'Mlat had be..n facilitated by the
fact that the sponsors of document A/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3 had recognized, in the
lates:': revised version, that the strengthening of the role of the United Nations in
the field of prevention of international conflicts could not be ~onfined solely to
the issue of improving the internal procedures of the Organiz~tion, with no regard
to the conduct of States. Con~equently, a further step had been taken in the
search for a generally acceptable agreement on that iRsue. During the discussion
of the document a number of comment'" and '.deas had been submitted and incorporated,
leading to a further improvpment of the text and its harmonization wit~ the
relevant provisions of the rynited Nations Charter. Thus, preliminary agreement had
been reached on most of the provisions of documen~ A/AC.l82/L.38/Rev.3. In his
delegation's view, all the prerequisites existed for successful consideration of
the remaining provi.sions and of the additional proposals submitted on that item.
He was thinking especially of the proposals made by the Soviet Union and
Czechoslovakia aimed at enhancing tp~ role of States in the prevention of
contlicts, and of the Ct,inese proposal (A/AC.182/L.54), which should be included in
the final part of the future document. Most delegations recognized the lIsefuln'ss
of the·se proposal8 and the sponsors of document A/AC.182/L. 38/Rev. 3 had shown
willillgness to negotiate in that connection. However, as a result of the
unwillingness of some otner delegations the Special Committee had not started
considering them at its latest session. Similarly, the consideration of document
A/AC.182/L.48, submitted by Czechoslovakia, the Germa~ Democratic Republic and
Poland, encouraged his delegation to identify those ideas contained in the document
that WE:~ closely related to the subject of conflict prevention. He was con~inced

that it would be possibl~ for thp Special Committee, at its next session, to
complete it6 ~,,",,\dp.ration of that queslion on the basis of the provisions on which
prel iminary agct!,'/f,ent had already !Jeen reached and the aforement toned proposals,
wh';,-'h should be c,)rnbined in a consolidated text for submission tJ the General
Asserlbly.

42. The constructive Ypirit that had prevailed at the latest session of the
Special Committe~ ha~ aloo been reflected in the new revised Romanian proposal
concerning the establishment of a commission of good offices, mediation or
conciliation (AjAC.182/L.52/Rev.l). The Romanian delegation had indicated its

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Page 12

(Mr. Kozubek, Czechoslovakia)

readiness to accommooate the nbservations made during the latest session of the
Special Committee, & fact which warranted his own delegation's hope that on the
baaia of good will it would be possible to find a ~atistactory solution to that
question.

43. With regard to the question of peaceful settlement of disputes between States,
his delegation supported the speedy preparation ot the handbook, which was the task
of the United Nations Secretariat.

44. The rationali~ation of existing procedures of the United Nations, considered
on the basis of working paper A/AC.182/L.43/Rev.l, submitted by Ft .... nce and the
United Kingdom, was likewise a U8IJful item in the work 0': the Special COll'lllittee.
Czechoslovakia appreciated the ptogres. made with regard to that agenda item at the
latest session and believed that the Special Committee should continue paying due
attention to the issue.

45. His delegation had listened with great interest to the statements made in the
Sixth Committee by Mr. Vladtmir Petrovsky, Deputy Minister for Foreign Affairs o~

the Soviet Union. He himself ,:oon.idered that the proposals of Mr. Petrovsky" like
the views of Mr. Mikhail Gorbachev made public in his article of 17 September 1987,
were closely connected with the activities of the Special Committee a~d would
contribute significantly to the orientation of its work aimed at solving the most
serious problems linked to the strengthening of the role of the united Nations in
current international relations.

46. Mr. HOPPE (German Democratic Republic) said that recent developments, such as
the aI:Jreement in principle between the Soviet union and the United States on the
conclusion of an accord on the elimination of ~dium-range and short-range nuclear
'uissiles, had given rise to hope for an improvement in the international
situation. All States should intensify their efforts, at both the regional and
global levels, to translate into reality the emerging possibilities of a solution
to the urgent problems of international coexiatGnce. ~n view of the increasing
interdependence of States and the complexity of current problems, existing
international organizations and instruments constituted an irreplaceable potential
for intensifying dialogue and peaceful coo-operation with a view to safeguarding
peace and establishing comprehensive, equal security conditions for all States.
The United Nations played a central role in that connection, for it was the most
comprehensive, universal instrument for the maintenance of international peace and
~ecurity.

47. In the conditions of the nuclear and space age, there was an urgent need to
strengthen in particular the function of safeguarding peace esta~lished in the
United Nations Charter. The proposal for the establishment of a comprehensive
system of international peace and security submitted by th~ socialist states at ~~e

forty-first se8sion of the General ASDembly met that need. In order to implement
that px~po8al, it'would be essential to enhance the authority and effectiveness cf
the principal organ8 of the Organization, especially the Security Council and the
General A8sembly, and to strengthen the role of the Sec~etary-General in resolving

I ...



A/C.6/42ISR.26
English
page 13

(Mr. Happe , German Democratic Republic)

current ~rucial issues. It was therefore rightly expected that the special
Committee, in ~ccordance with the priorities set forth in its mandate, would give
the United Nations an effective impetus with regard to international security, the
prevention and peaceful set.tlelllt..lt of disp'Jtes and situations of tension, and the
solution of other global pcohlems.

48. The retlults achieved at th~ twelfth session of the Spacial Committee showed
that consid .. rablt, progr&ss had been made. Despite s<Alle remaining differences of
opinion, a COlll'l;;t;llct!ve atmosphere had prevailed during the ses&ion, which had been
marked by the ~~fO[t8 made by all concerned to find generally acceptable solutions
to the question und~r conSideration. lhe discussion of the item relating to the
maintenance of lnteroational peace and security had emphasized the need to consider
all aspects of the maintenance of peace in a comprehensive and complax way.
Working Pltper: A/AC.182/L.48, submitted by (;~echoslovakia, the Gerllllln Democratic
Republic and Poland, ~ad made an important contribution in that connection. It hAd
been generally confilmed that the conduct and role of States in maintaining peace,
and in particUlar their readiness to implement the pu~poses and principles of the
United Nations Charter, ~ere decisive element", not only with regard to the
peac&ful settlement of disputes, but also with regard to the strengthening of the
role of the Organization and the enhancement of its effectiveness. During the
consideration of the revised working paper submitted by Belgium, the Federal
Republic ef Germllny, Italy, Japan, New Zealand and Spain (A/AC. l82/L. 38/Rev.3) , a
number of States had emphasized that it was necessary to take into account the
special responsibility of States concerning the prevention of disputes. The
discussion of that working paper had resulted in substantial progress. The
condi tions had thus been created for" the preparation in the near i'uture of a
document acceptable to all sides, which took into account all existing and future
proposals relating to the role of States and United N~tions organs in the
pr' -'ent ion of d ispu teS.

49. Wi th regard to the peaceful settlement of disputes, his Govermr.ent welcomed
the revision of document A/AC.182/L.52 by tl.e delegation of Romania as " result of
the discussion in the Committee. The revised version (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.l) was a
great improvement over the pre"~ous text. At the forthcaning session of the
Special Committee, the German Democratic Republic would actively participate in the
finalization of that document and also of document 1'!AC.182/L.43/Rev.2 submitted by
France and the united Kingdom regarding the rationalization of existing United
Nations procedures. AB a matter of principle, his delegation attached great
importance to all proposals suitable for enhancing the effectiveness of the United
Nations and its organs, and it would support such proposals provided that they were
in conformity with the Charter and hel~Jed to improve the work of the United Nations
organs and thus enhance the Organization's effectiveness.

50. Mr. SELVA GUTIERREZ (Nicaragua) welcomed the progress made in drafting a
handbook on the ~aceful settlement of disputes, whose prompt pUblication in all
official languages was of great imr0rtance. His Government also supported the

I . ..



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Pllge 14

(Mr. Selva Gutierrez, Nicaragua)

Romanian proposal on the resort to a commission of good offices, mediation or
conci liation within the United Nations, conta ined in document A/AC. 182/L. 'i2/Rev. 1.

SI. The principle of the peaceful settlement of international disputc6 was one of
the main pillars of the Charter and was linkea to other principles, which together
constituted the corner-stone of international order. For almost seven years, his
Governm.'nt had been fac~ng aggression of serious proportions on the part of a
nuclear Power, which had become the scourge of the peoples of Latin America and the
third world and whose policies were a threat ~o all small peoples and countries
fighting for their indever.~e"ce and sovereignty. To remedy that si':uation;
Nicaragua had turned to bililteral dialogue and the procedures enumerated ;n
Article 33 of the Charter. In June 1986, the International Court of Justice had
condemned the Government of the United states for its military and paramilitary
actions in and against Nicaragua in a jU~gement that was a model of l~Jal wisdom,
objecti.vity and justice. His delegation wondered what would become 01 the
international legal system if the Court's decioion was not respected.

52. Nicaragua had don. everything in its power to guarantflt" the SUCCE'9S of thE'
peace efforts of the countries making up the Contadora Group and the Support Group,
had on two occasions been the only country preparad to sign the various versions of
the Contadora Act, and had formulated innumerable proposals and ~ppeals for the
bilateral dialogue initiate~ in Manzanillo by the good offices at Mexico and
interrupted for no reason by the Government of the United States.

53. Nicaragua was not abandoning the peaceful settlement of disputes. For that
reason, ita Government had signed in Nicaragua the ·Procedure for the establishment
of a Hem and lasting peace in Central Ameeica", for the ir.''llementation of which
the respect and co-operation of countrie~ with interests in the drea was bf vital
importance. The Peesident of Nioaragua had again urged the Government of the
United States to staet a dialogue without pre-conditions in order to find d

solution to problems of security.

54 .. With eegard to the rationalization of existing united Nations procedures, his
delegatlon uoubted the desirability of continuing within the Special Committee an
activity which w~s being conducted satisfactorily in other organs, and it shared
the concern voiced in paeagraph 8 of document A/AC.l82/L.43/Rev.2.

55. With regard to the maintenance international peace and security, his
delegation welcomed the reference to the fundamental responsibility of States for
the prevention and removal of disputes in accordance with their obligations under
the Charter. Owing to the lack of political will on the part of certain permanent
members of the Security Council, however, little progress had been maoe in
reinfoecing the United Nations preventive function. Particular attention should be
given to the role which the secretary-General might and should play in pre\·ent ing
disputes and promPting peacefUl settlements.

56. It was a fact that a number of trouble-spots had sprouted up that jeopard ized
international peace and security, and the United Nations had been unable to find a

/ ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 26
English
Page 15

(Mr. Selva Gutierrez, Nicaragua)

solution to those conflicts. That being the case, it was necessary to turn to
account the experience acquired by the Organization in observer missions and
peace-keeping operations and to reactivate multilateralism without delay, which was
the sole way to reach negotiated settlements.

57. His delegation regretted that certain Members of the United Nations had
repeatedly contravened the purposes and principles of the Charter and had
disregarded the resolutions ~opted by United Nations bodies. The misuse of the
veto in the Security Council must stop. Furthermore, Chapter VII of the Charter
must be applied in cases of flagrant non-compliance with its resolutions, as in the
case of aeartheid South Africa.

58. His delegation W&S confident that sooner or later the rule of law would
triumph over the use of force and that the right to self-determination of peoples
fighting for their dignity, sovereignty and independence would be guar~nteed.

59. Mr. MAPAW'~ fila KEMISHAGA (zaire) said that the report before the Committee
(A/42/33) was of overriding importance for his country. The three questions dealt
with were essential elements capable of enhancing the Organization's effectiveness
and strengthening States' confidence in it. All depended on the political will of
States.

60. With regard to the peaceful settlement of disputes, his delegation was
perplexed ny the proliferation in recent years of texts on the same subject, a
development which threatened to culminate in a new situation characterized by a
lack of documents or absolute rules and, hence, a legal vacuum. Therefore, instead
of dwelling on new procedures for the peaceful settlement of disputes, the Special
Committee should, wherever possible, review existing rules and procedures for the
adoption of decisions within the competent organs of the United Nations. His
delegation therefore joined those who advocated the holding of consultations to
reconsider the Special Committee's mandate in its entirety.

61. His Government recognized the potential imPOrtance of a handbook, which in
practice contributed to strengthening the principle of peaceful settlement of
disputes, and it would refer again to that question once the Secretariat's work was
more advanced. It would also accept, with certain drafting changes, the Romanian
proposal On resort to a commission of good offices, mediation or conciliation
within the united Nations.

62. With regard to the rationalization of existing United Nations procedures, his
delegation could hardly accept the first paragraph of the version that appeared in
paragraph 34 of the report. A general application of the rule of adoption by
consensus amounted to the veto system in thin disgUise and in the long run would
undermine the majority rule, thereby opening the way for non-compliance with the
relevant provisions of the Charter, in particular Article 18, paragraph 2. If the
situation in a given region were to deteriorate because of the opposition of a
State or small group of States, his delegation wondered who in the final analysis
would adopt the decisions in the United Nations. The so-called balance of power of

/ ...



-----------_._-

A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
page 16

(Mr. Mapango ma Kemishaga, Zaire)

the United Nations bodies not only was contrary to the rule of the majority, but
also tended to replace it. Hence, his delegation was not prepared to support a
provision of that nature, which was tantamount to transposing the veto to the
General Assembly and ran counter to the principle of universality and the high~r

interests of the international community.

63. with respect to the maintenance of international peace and security, the
question on which the Special Committee had been requested to conce'trate its
efforts, his delegation generally supported paragraph 106 of the report and noted
that the proposal submitted in document A/AC.182/L.48 satisfied his expectations.
His delegation favoured a democratization of the de~ision-making process in order
to avoid situations in which the Committee would be both judge and party. It also
deplored the deviationist tendency in the Committee aimed at stripping its mandate
of a' substance. It endorsed paragraph 108 of the Committee's report, which
invited the Committee to reflect on the current Lnternational situation. It alse
t1upported the proposal contained in document A/AC.182/L.54.

64. Lastly, and in so far as all those proposals, inclUding the third revision of
~rking paper A/AC.l&2/L.38/Rev.3, had the same objective, his delegation suggested
that the Special Committee should make a ~omparative analysis of the proposals at
its next session and to that end, it favoured renewal of the Committee's mandate.

65. Mr. MADI (i Jypt) said that he was pleased that the Special Committee on the
Charter had held a very important session during which it had demonstrated the will
of all delegations to reach an agreement on the most important aspect of the
Committee's work in accordance with the provisions of General Assembly resolution
41/83.

66. The Egyptian delegation was satisfied by the progress made in l~e work on the
preventive role of the United Nations. The discussions of document
A/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3 had facilitated the drafting and tentative approval of a number
of paragraphs, which would make the Committee's labours next year easier because it
would be basing them on a consolidated d~ument which would include the proposals
contained in the revised text and in p~ragraph 46 and 102 of the report.

67. The Egyptian de~..egation appreciated the Se-::retariat's efforts to prepare a
handbook on the peaceful settlement of disputes between States. While it was not
unaware of the difficulties involved, his delegation felt that priority should be
given to completing the handbook.

68. With reference to the Romanian proposal on resort to a commission of good
offices, mediation nr conciliation within the United Nations, he took note of t~e

work which had culmillated in the working paper (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.l) but felt that
while the document took into accoun~ previous proposals, it failed to clarify many
important points such as the legal aspects of the process of establishing the
commission, the actua~ relationship betwee the commission and the organs of the
United Nations, how its members were to be ·lected - whether as individuals or
States - the holding of lIIeet ings away from 'lllited Nat.ions Headquarters and, lastly,
how it was to be financed.

/ ...



A/C. 6/42/SR. 26
English
Page 11

(Mr. Madi, E9Y~)

69. Although his delegation regarded the question of the rationftli%ation of the
established procedures of the United Nations as very important, it considered that
the Special Committee was not the proper forum to discuss it and that there were
other United Nations forums better Buited for that purpose with specific mandate••

10. The Egyptian delegation had listened attentively to other delegations and was
convinced that the immense majority supported the completion at the next .e••ion,
if possible by consensus, of the principal item before it, namely, the United
~ations function of preventing conflicts. In that connection, he stre.sed the need
to take advantage of the momentum generated in the debate and pointed out that all
St~tes were prepared to approve a draft prepared by the Comrni;tee. Accordingly
inlor~al consultations should be held on the basis of a consolidated text. Talk.
and negotiations on the Committee's future mandate in th~ araa of the maintenance
of internation~l peace and security should ~lso be opened 600nJ Egypt was prepared
to collaborate in that endeavour.

11. Mr. LOULICHKI (Morocco), referring to the proposal contained in the working
paper on resort to a commission of good offices, mediation or conciliation trithin
the United Nations (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.l), considered that the commisaion was
defined in paragraph 1 of the paper as a "procedure" at the disposal of States !lrd
of the competent organs of the Organization. That procedure led to the
establishment of a special "organ" for every situation, consequently, the ambiguity
remained.

12. On the other hand, the wording of paragraphs 14 and 15 of the paper seemed to
suggest that while the commission's proceedings would be ccnfidential, the outCQ~e

of those proceedings would not necessarily remain confidential. Thus, paragraph 15
of the paper stated that "upon conclusion of it~ activity the commission will
prepare its report and communicate it to the States parties to the dispute and to
the United Nations organ concerned", but it stated further that "the States parties
to the dispute decide if a report id to be made public". By providing that ies
report would automatically be communicated to the united Nations organs concerned,
paragraph 15 failed to take due account of the difference in each particular case
referred to in paragraph 2 and, specifically, the case where the commission was
established ent irely on the basis ('If an agr,' ~Ill~.·i(. of the States parties to a
dispute. Consequently, the Moroccan delegation felt that the words "as
appropr i.:'':e" should be inserted before the words "to the Uni ted Nat ions organ
concerned" in parag~aph 15. Notwithstanding those considerations, his delegation
appreciated the efforts which the Romanian delegation was continuing to make to
eliminate the ambiguities inherent in LOIlle aspects of ita proposal.

13. Referring to the peaceful settlement of disputes bP.tween Stat~s, he reiterated
his support for the preparation of a draft handbook on the question and expressed
the hope that the human and financial resourcC!s required for it to cOllillete its
work would be made available to the Secret Iriat.

14. with regard to the question of the rationalization of the established
procedures of the United Nations and with reference to do~ument

/ ...



I\/C.6/42/SR.26
Jl:nglish
Page 18

(Mr. Loulichki, Morocco)

A/AC.182/L.43/Rev.l, his delegation felt that ~fter the ~roposals formulated
following the fortieth session of the Gener.al Assembly by various organs, the
Special Committee should have concentrated its efforts on the question of the
maintenance of international peace and securtty. However, it had no objection to
having the Committee continue to discusb t~e document at its next section with a
view to r~achlng general agreement on some proposals and recommending them to the
General Assembly for adoption •. In that res~ect, the MorOCCAn delegation shared the
opinion expressed in the Committee that the working paper should include provisions
on the rationalization of the procedures of the Security Council with the object of
strengthening the principal function exe,'cized by the Coun.:.:il under the system
established in the Charter.

75. His delegation noted that the Special Committee had made considerdble progress
on the elaboration of a draft declaration 0n the prevention and temoval by the
United Nations of disputes, situations whi~h might lead to international friction
or give rise to a dispute and matters which might threaten the rnaintenan~e of
international peace and security. Out of th~ 21 paragraphs in the draft, 16 had
already been the subject of agreemellt, which gave grounds for hoping that, at its
1988 session, the Special Co~nittee would be able to approve a revised version of
that draft which took into account the reJeVGnt elements of do~ument

A!AC.182/L.48. From the beginning of th£ Sp~cial Committee's work, his del~gation

had stressed the need to develop the pre"entive aapect ot: the role of the United
Nations in the maintenance of internationa~. peace and security. Recent events had
once again shown that it was extremely dif,icult to put an end to a declared
conflict and that the prospects for settlem~nt became more remote as the conflict
intensified. Proceeding from that premise, his delegation support~d the working
paper submitted by six Western countries (A/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3). It would
nevertheless have preferr3d that the draft ~€claration i.nclude the text of the
paragraphs accepted provisionally. Furthermore, it considered that the document
should be entitled "Declaration on the strengthening of the role of the united
Nations in the prevention and removal of disputes, situations which might lead to
international fric~ion or give rise to a dispute and matters which mi~ht threaten
the maintenance of international peace and security". rt would be approp~iate to
include in the first preambular paragraph a reference to the Declaration on the
Enhancement of the Effectiveness of the Principle of Non-Use of Force in
International Relations, since tllat DeclaraUon included paragraphs on the
prevention of conflicts and disputes. The!' wording of paragraph 8 mi,ght be improved
by the deletion of the word "further", which 8~.ved no purpose, and ~f the words
"where appropriate", since the Security COllncf.l alone had the tas~ of considering
sending fact-findlnq or good officea missions. The text would then read, "The
Security Council should consider sending, at an early stage, fact-finding or good
offices missions or establishing appropriate forms of United Nations prespnce,
including observers and peac~-keeping operat1ons, as a means of preven~ing the
deteriorati.on of the dispute, si tuation or ma cter in the areas concerned".

76. Apart from the 9receding comments of a formal character, his delegation noted
that the draft declaration contained only two paragraphs, in the preamble, on the
obligations of States. It was necessary to ~ecall those obligations in the

/ ...



A/C.6/4:1/SR.26
English
Page 19

(Mr. Loulichki, Morocco)

declaration. Moreover, his delegation was in favor of adding the first two saving
clauses proposed by the delegation of China (A/AC.182/L.54), the general character
of which adequately covered the ideas expressed in paragraphs (c) and ( I of that
proposal.

77. Lastly, he pointed out that, in view of the possible adoption of the
above-mentioned declaration in 1988, the Sixth COmmittee should reflect on the new
mandate to be given to the Special Committee in the sphere of the maintenance of
international peace and security. He hoped that that new mandate '~uld better
reflect the concerns ari sing out of the current state of international rE'I,Hons
and the aspirations of the inturnational community for. the establishment Ul

relations involving less conflict and more solidarity.

7~. Mr. SUKHBAATAR (Mongolian People's Republic) said that the events of re~ent

decades showed that, owing to the protracted arms race and the existence of
unresolved conflicts in various regions, the world was becoming increasingly
interdependent. In those circumstances, unco-ordina':ed measures adopted by some
States or groups of States might have consequences for others. At the same time,
there was a noticeable trend for States to harmonize their activities in the 3phere
of the maintenance of international peace and security, which was expressed, for
example, in efforts to strengthen the role of the United Nations. The Organization
was the most universal entity currently existing, and in it States large and small
with different ideologies and economic and social systems could discuss common
problems and adopt decisions acceptable to all. The work of the Special Committee
formed a part of the efforts made by States to strengthen international peace and
security. Acco,dingly, his delegation took a great interest of the work of the
Spacial Committee and agreed with the view expressed by the Chairman of the
Committee that it had ~a~e considerable progress at its last session.

79. With regard to the report of the Secretary-General on the prugress of work on
the draft handbook on the peaceful settlement of disputes between States, his
delegation felt that it constituted an excellp.nt t3sis for a full consideration of
questions relating to the peaceful dettlement of disputes, the rationalization of
existing procedures of the united Nations and the maintenance of international
peace and security. It therefore attached great importance to the h~ndbook, which
constituted a practical contribution to the strengthening of the principle of
peaceful settlement of disputes.

80. \~e working pa~er on resort to a commission of good offices, mediation or
conciliation within the United Nations (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.l), submitted by Romania,
was useful, in keeping with the provisions of the Charter and cledrly important. A
positive assessment could be made of its provisions. In particular, point 12 was
extremely important in the light of evente in the world at present.

81. With regard to the rationalization of the procedures of the United Nations, he
drew attention to the article by Mr. Gorbachev, General Secretary of the Communist
Party of the Soviet Union, concerning safeguards for a secure world (A/42/574), in
which practical measures were proposed for the strengthening of the United Nations

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR" 26
Bngl1sh
Pag" 20

(Mr. Sukhbaatar, Mongolian
People's Republic)

and its main organs. His delegation wished to associate itself with those
delegations that had deemed it essential to strengthen the preventive function of
the Security Council as the organ entrusted with primary responsibility for the
maintenance of international peace and se"urity. The powers of th" Security
Council should be strengthened in the sphere of disarmament, particularly nuclear
disarmament. .

82. General Assembly decisions adopted by consensus should be accorded priority
over other decisions because they were a clear demonstration of the will of
States. The exercise of the peace-keeping functions of the Secretary-General could
also help to augment the authority of the Unit~d Nations. In his recent stateme~t

in the United Nations General Asspmbly, the Minister for Foreign Affairs of
Mongolia had referred to the growing importance of the United Nations as an
instrument for the harmonization of State action aimed at finding solutions to
world problems •.

83. Mongolia felt obliged to contribute to the strengthening of the role of the
United Nations in all spheres, as was demonstrated by its ~ontribution of
.US 20,000 for the year 1981-1988. With a view to the strengthening of the united
Nations, consideration should be given to the possibi'ity of co-ordinating the work
of the United Nations with that of other public international organizations that
made a major contribution to the maintenance of peace and the moulding of public
opinbn.

84. Mr. CfRVALOV (Bulgaria) said that, in his report on the work of the
orga.\~on, thG S~crp.tarv-General had noted that countries of disparate political
orientations and economic systems had begun tu d~~l with problems ~f an
intordependent world with a new pragmatism and awareness of the dangers of
immobility. That could provide a promising basis for broadened multilateral
co-operation. The result could be full~r realization of the principles of the
Charter of the United Nations.

85. His delegation fully shared the conclusion of the report that the improvement
of the intecnational Yituation, the exercise of the necessary political will in the
elimination of crises and tensions and the promotion of co-operation among States
would result in fuller realization of the principles of the United ~ations. The
Special Committee on the Charter of the Uftited Nations and on the Strengthening of
the Role of the Organization ha~ contributed to the positive developments
unde~lying that conclusion.

86. His Government attached major importance to the strict observance of the
Charter of the United Nations and to the strengthening of the role of the
Org&nJ.zation. A stronger United Nations would have a favourable effect upon the
maintenance of internattonal peace and security. There ~lS a growing need for
preventive measures in that field to be adopted by the organs of the United
Nations. The establishment of additional meehanisms for the peaceful settlement of
disputes - mechanisms which neither entailed further financial expellses and new

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
Page 21

(Mr. Garvalov, Bulgaria)

permanent organs, nor ~ffected the freedom of States to choose from among the
existing mechanisms - was another important aspect of the prevention 0f conflicts
and the maintenance of international peace and security. It was obvious that the
effectiveness of united Nations efforts depended on the actions of Member States.
Poaitive results could be attained only through the co-ordin~ted actions of States
aimed at achieving a constructive approach, positive co-operation and strict
complia~ce with the obligationa set forth in the Charte~.

87. The working paper submitted by Belgium, the Federal Republic of Germany,
Italy, Japan, New Zealand and Spain on the prevention and removal by the united
Nations of disputes, siluations which might lead to international friction or give
rise to a dispute and matters which might threaten the maintenance of peace and
security (A/AC.182/L.38/Rev.3), and the working paper submitted by Czechoslovakia,
the German Democratic Republic and poland (A/AC.l82/L.48) were document& on which
his delegation would like to express ita position simultaneously. The texts
submitted had been substantiall~ imprOVed, and it was now possible for the Special
Committee to complete its drafting work at the next session. The effect of the
adoption of the draft declaration on the role of the United Nations in that field
would largely depend on the reattlrmation oe the rights and duties of Member
States. His delegation shared the opinion, reflected in paragraph 46 of the
Special Committee's report (A/42/33), that the future document should consist of
two sections, one dealing with the responsibilities of Statee, the othe~ with the
preventive role of United Nations organs. In that respect, the delegations of the
Soviet Union and Czechoslovakia had introduced specific proposals at the most
recent session of the Special Committee. That had been lecognized by the sponsors
of the working paper on the draft declaration, as could be seen in the second
preamhular paragraph.

88. Equally important was the addition to the working paper of the four paragraphs
proposed by the Chinese delegation. As pointed out in paragraph 103 of the Special
Committee's report, those paragraphs had met with a favourable response in the
Committee.

89. The Romanian proposal on a commission of good offices, mediation or
conciliation within the United Nations was a most useful one, and provided an
opportunity to increase the range of available mechanisms for the peaceful
settlement of disputes. His delegalion shared the opinion expressed by the
Romanian representative in the Sixth Committee to the effect that, as a result of
the discussion, the proposal could be viewed as the common achievemunt of all
delegations. Bulgaria hoped that the Special Committee, at its next session, would
address the remaining issues relating to the working paper so that it could be
SUbmitted for adoption at the forty-third session of the General Assembly. Lastly,
his delegation wished to commend the Special Committee for its useful work on the
question of the rationalization of the procedures of th~ United Nations and its
organs.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
Bnglish
,?"ge 22

90. Mr. ZLITNI (Libyan Arab Jamahiriya) said that the question of revising the
Charter of the United Nations and strengthening the role of the Organization was
very lmport~nt to his country, given its firm conviction that th~ current situation
was completely different from th~ situation at the time of the adoption of the
Charter. Becaus. of the radical chdnges that had since occurred and because of
i"ternational tension, racism, imperialism and the nuclear thleat, it was
imperative to find ways of improving the Charter, strengthening the role of the
Organization and guaranteeing its continued exi6tence:

91. The Special Committee's report (A/42/33) focused on the draft handbook on the
peaceful settlement ot disputes between St~tes, on the need to finalize it as soon
as possible, on the Romanian proposal concerning a commission of good offices,
mediation or conciliation within the United Nations (A!AC.182/L.52/Rev.l), and on
the ~et>ate regarding the form, the jurbsdiction and the finanoing of such an
organ. The report also focused on the rationalizatio,l of the procedures of the
United Nations and its implicfttions for the provisions of the Charter, as well as
on the draft d~claration on the prevention and removal by the united Nations of
disputes. I" his opinion, all those questions afforded the means whel'eby the
Special Committee coul~ carry out its task, which was to revise the Charter and
strEtngthen the role of the Organization. The proposals in 'le report must not be
used as a pretext for halting progress towards a colle~tive formula meeting the
intecests of the entire internati0'al COlIImunity.

92. The Libyan Arab Jamahiriya believed that the Gordian knot was the wea~ness of
the mechanism established in the Charter. Amid all the talk of a commission of
g~ ~ffices, a araft handbook, the rationalization of procedures and a declaration
on . prevention an~ removal of disputes, it was being forgotten that the United
Nations and its varioum organs would be able to fulfil the relevant functions if
only they were allowed to do 80. The United Nations had failed in its task of
maintainil~ international peace and security because of the weakness of the
mechanism established in the Charter, which made it impossible to punish the
aggressor. The use of the veto in the Security Council prevented the adoption of
legitimate sanctions under the Charter. The principle of unanimity was contrary to
all democratic principles, and prevented the adoption of collective measures to
strengthen the role of the United Nations in protecting mankind. That had
diminished the system of collective security, which was the corner-stone of the
maintenance of peace. The most important United Nations mechanisms relating to
peace and security had been paralysed and incapacitated by the abuse of the veto by
~ertain permanent members of the Security Council.

93. It was therefore nf!eeS8ary to change the orientation of the Security Council,
which, as it now functioned, wae ~ncapable of taking effective action, eRpecially
in cases of aggression such as that suffered by the Libyan Arab Jamahiriya. It was
also essential to reconsider the right of veto, whinh had been laid down in the
Charter without any basis in la~. The right of veto was contrary to the spirit and
letter of thu Charter, oontcary to the principle of equ~lity and in violation of
~~neral Assembly resol, ;ion lSL4 (XV) on the right of peoples to
!!elf-determiration. 'those countries which had the rf ght of veto must assume thei r
res~~nsibilitie8 and commitments, and honour them in accordance with the Charter.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
Bnglhh
P.ge 23

(Mr. ~litni, LibYan Arab
JamaMc1ya)

At the same Hme, thll[l(J' llIust be limits on the .ituation. in which the u.e of the
veto was permis.ible. 'Ct. was also ••••ntial to str.ngth.n the role of the a.noral
Assembly, especially W:l'ttl regard to d.cidons Ildopted by con••nllU., which must have
binding force. The AS8~mbly should be compet.nt to s.ttl. disput•• involving
perll'ollnent m.mb.rs of the Security Council.

94. There was a gruwin9 tend.ncy to restrict the function. of the Security Council
to its permanent mttRlb.,[a. That con.tituted • furth.r violation of the principl. of
equality, and deni,Jd Meaber Stat.s an opportunity to fulfil the function. which
they could fulfil under: the Ch.rter.

95. In view of that atalemate, which re.ulted from the lack of co-operation and
trust in international relation., his ;,eleqati~n wondered wheth.r the r.vision of
the Chart.r could be regarded as lik.~y to impede the function. of the United
Nations, whether an incr•••• in the number of ..mb.r. of t~. Security COUncil would
~ive ~ise to confu.ior, for the Orqanization, wh.th.r the limitation of the right of
veto might not he in t,he int.rest of peac,., security and freedOll, or whet,h.r the
request to dispense with the veto would be a threat to peace an~ s.curity.

96. His country had consistently .upported the Special Committ•• •• effort. and wae
not oppos~d to the consideration of any proposal de.igned to pr.v.nt thr.at. to
international peace and security, but it s~r.s.ed that the probl.m d.rived fr~ the
weakness of the mechanism e.tablished by the Chart.r. That did not, howev.r,
prevent it from abiding by the provi.ion. of the Chart.r and r••pecting th~ United
Nations and its various organs, as was demonstrated by the fact that it had
resorted to the Intornational Court of Justic. in order to settle c.rtain l.qal
problems. In that regard, his country wished to empha.iz. the important role
played by the International Court, an organ which should b. str..ngthened and whose
judgments and decisions should be adhered to .trictly.

97. His country had apon.ored on a number of occa.ions & draft re80lution on
abandonment of the veto on the ground that, if the .xercise of so unjust a
privil~qe continued to be tol.rated, i' would remain an ob.taale to international
peace and security and would undermine the work of the United Nation••

98. In conclusion, hie country supported General Ass.mbly resolution 41/83, which
accepted the participation of observers of Member Stat•• , and it also .upported the
Special Committee, which requir~ a n~w lease of life and .hould continue to be an
open-ended body. His country believed that the Special Committee should oansider
the proposals whi h had the support of the majority of the int.rnational aa.munity
and which enabled the Security Council and the Gen.ral As.embly to adopt .ffectiv.
decisions and s.ttle disputes in accordance with the principl•• of equality and
democracy. The special Committee .hould focus it. att.ntion on i ••ue. of
importance to all Member States and should endeavour to avoid the negative .ffect
of the principle of unanimity, in order to limit it to vital que.tion.. It should
recommend that the adoption of deci.ions in the S.curity Council would d.rive from

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
English
p,qe 24

(Mr. Zlitni, Libyan Arab
Jamahiriya)

consistent agr.eme~ts and that the principle of equitable geographical distribution
should be respectftd, since it was only right to involve everyone in the effort to
maintain internstional peace and security.

99. Mr. BOULANDI (Chad) said that the Charter of the United Nations was an
effective instrument for averting and settling disputes. Although all invoked the
principles of the Charter, in practice very fp.w countries observed them
faithfully. One might ask, therefore, what should be done to ensure that the
Charter contributed effectively to the safeguarding of international peace,and
security. His delegation saw the outline of a solution 1n chapters IX and IV of
the Special Committee's report.

100. Although the working paper submitted by Romania (A/AC.182/L.52/Rev.1) provided
a sound basis for reflection, it called for a number of comments. Paragraphs) and
4 of the document referred to the recommendation to establish a commission of good
offices, mediation or conciliation which could ba formulat~d by the Security
Council or the General Assembly. In his delegation's view, when one of the
princi~al organs observed that a dispute c0uld be settled ~. that mean., that organ
shoul~ be the one to decide, after consulting with th~ par.ties, to set up the
aforementioned commission. That comment also applied to the second sentence of
paragraph 6. The chahman of the commission shou:.d preferably be appointed by the
Secretary-General, with the consent of the parties. Regarding paragraph 9, he .aid
that mediation should precede the start ~f direct negotiations, since that would
enable the commiBsion to iron out difficulties Crom the outset.

101. S~ates frequently resorted to the Security Council or the General Assembly
once the path of f.irect negotiation had been bl~ked by a refusal of one ef the
parties to accept conciliation. That was what had happened in the dispute bet~een

his country and Libya. The Tripoli r~ime's refusal to engage in dialogue had
obliged Chad to resort to the Security Councll and the General Assembly on a number
of occasions, since Libya had invariably greeted su~ge~tions of dialogue with
gun-fire. Under the circumstanoes, his delegation would prefer that the commission
should first draw up its report and then endeavour to reconcile positions, before
recommending direct negQtiations. However, beforehand, in the legal dtlCUment
establiehing the commiBsion, the General AlJsembly or the Security Cour.en should
specify the period of time and the task to be performed. Accorulngly, lhe wordi~g

of paragraph 11 should be MOdified and the second sentence of paragraph 13 should
be deleted.

102. Although aware that it would be diffic..:Jt to secure .""1Il States with divergent
interests an open pronouncement in favour of the adoption of sanctions against
another state, hi~ delegation believed that it would be possible to establish
binding measures ensuring that States parties would co-operate fUlly with the
t.lommission.

103. The text of the draft declaration on the maintenance of international peace
and security fully deserved the Committee's attention. That text should contain

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.26
P.ngliah
P~ge 25

(Mr. Boulandi, Chad)

not only recommendations to the Security COuncil but also provisions to improve the
Council's functioning. To that end, hiB delegation would like the prinoipal
mediation role to belong to the Secretary-General. It therefore proposed the
deletion of the word ·consider· in paragraph 16. It alBo seemed desirable to
provide for the possibility of the Secretary-General's taking immediate charge of
any situation which might endanger p·ace. His delegation a:so supported the
strengthening of the dispute-prevention function of the Security Council.

104. With regard to the strengthening of the United Nations role, his delegation
welcomed the inclusion of new paragraphs in the main text. It, nevertheless, had
reservations about paragraph 8 of the addition, which in its opinion gave
pr~cedence to action under regional arrangements. His delegation felt that resort
to the ~ecurity Council or the General Ass&mbly tn any situation which might
endanger international peace and security should be left to the discretion of the
Members of the United Nations, as was provided for in Article 35 of the Charter.
The attempt to regionalize the peaceful settlement of disputes satisfied those who
sought to diminish the importance of the United Nations role.

The meating rose at 1.05 p.m.


